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David 

From:
Sent: Monday, 17 January 2022 10:08 PM
To: FOI requests at CO
Subject: [External] Freedom of Information request - Access to operational or administrative 

documents

Dear Commonwealth Ombudsman, 

This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act 1982. 

Other than the Work Practice Manual for complaint management (January 2019) or the Agency Guide to the PID Act 
(Version 2), I request access to any operational or administrative documents that set out how approaches about 
inadequately investigated internal disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2013 are handled by the Office of 
the Commonwealth Ombudsman. 

Please provide the relevant document or documents by return email. 

------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Please use this email address for all replies to this request: 
 

Is ombudsman@ombudsman.gov.au the wrong address for Freedom of Information requests to Commonwealth 
Ombudsman? If so, please contact us using this form: 
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.righttoknow.org.au%2Fchange_request%2
Fnew%3Fbody%3Dco&amp;data=04%7C01%7Combudsman%40ombudsman.gov.au%7C1db12e0fce044e9d8a2b08d9d9
a9aa59%7C443ee9e811ff4c829e4139331045260a%7C0%7C1%7C637780145003142723%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3
d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&amp;sdata=zgkVUPPSP64gjI
OboY7VLCaet3HndXQYEVFvf1LnhUE%3D&amp;reserved=0 

This request has been made by an individual using Right to Know. This message and any reply that you make will be 
published on the internet. More information on how Right to Know works can be found at: 
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.righttoknow.org.au%2Fhelp%2Fofficers&a
mp;data=04%7C01%7Combudsman%40ombudsman.gov.au%7C1db12e0fce044e9d8a2b08d9d9a9aa59%7C443ee9e811
ff4c829e4139331045260a%7C0%7C1%7C637780145003142723%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwM
DAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&amp;sdata=d3KTg5iumjn3YXwNi6N61NPO%2BGCS3s
wKET5SnBgJOoU%3D&amp;reserved=0 

Please note that in some cases publication of requests and responses will be delayed. 

If you find this service useful as an FOI officer, please ask your web manager to link to us from your organisation's FOI 
page. 

------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Caution: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 
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matter of each such document w thout ascerta n ng whether the ec p ent o  the request ho ds any such documents and  f so

cons der ng the subject matter of each of them   Th s cons derat on po nts to the propos t on that  at east n some cases  a request

cannot be transferred pursuant to s 16(1)(b) w thout the agency rece v ng t ascerta n ng whether t has documents to wh ch access s

sought by means of the request

34                  Overa  s 16 of the FO  Act app es to transfers n four s tuat ons   The s tuat ons that are the subject of subss (2) and (3)

g ve r se to a duty to transfer   The word “sha  s used   By contrast  n re at on to the two cond t ons of transfer n subs (1)  the word

“may  s used  connot ng that the exerc se of d scret on s nvo ved   Each of the four s tuat ons n wh ch a transfer s requ red or

author sed focuses on the word “document   By s 16(1)(a)  the power to transfer may be exerc sed on y where the document s not n

the possess on of the rec p ent agency but  to the know edge of the rec p ent agency  s n the possess on of another agency   The

rec p ent of the request cou d not exerc se th s power to transfer w thout know ng that t d d not have the document sought n ts

possess on   t cou d on y know the answer to that quest on f t had taken steps to ascerta n what documents t d d have answer ng the

descr pt on n the request   Paragraphs (a) and (b) of s 16(1) appear to be a ternat ves   Between them  they exhaust the amb t of the

d scret onary power to transfer a request   Each of those paragraphs contemp ates a spec f c document the subject of a request   Wh ch

one of the paragraphs w  app y depends on whether the document s or s not n the possess on of the rec p ent of the request   Before

a request can be transferred pursuant to s 16(1)  t must be the case that the document s not n the possess on of the rec p ent of the

request  n wh ch case para (a) app es  or t s n the possess on of the rec p ent of the request and ts subject matter s more c ose y

connected w th the funct ons of another agency  n wh ch case para (b) app es   The quest on whether a document s n an agency s

possess on can on y be answered after the agency has made any necessary search for that document  or a document answer ng ts

descr pt on   Further  each of the dut es to transfer spec f ed n subss (2) and (3) cou d on y be carr ed out f the rec p ent of the request

was aware of what documents t had answer ng the descr pt on n a request and the cr ter a n those subsect ons respect ve y   Th s s a

powerfu  reason for conc ud ng that the process of transferr ng under s 16 s one that can on y be cons dered after the rec p ent of the

request has become aware of the documents t has n ts possess on answer ng the descr pt on n the request  by mak ng a search of ts

own records   n th s context  part cu ar y because t refers to a “document  rather than to a request  as do s 16(1)(a)  s 16(2) and s

16(3)  there s no reason to suppose that s 16(1)(b) s to be construed any d fferent y

35                  The context of the rema n ng prov s ons of s 16 of the FO  Act tends to conf rm that a transfer can on y be put nto effect

after an agency has conducted a search to ascerta n whether or not t has the document sought   Sect on 16(3A) prov des that a

request for more than one document (wh ch wou d nc ude a request for documents by descr pt on of categor es) s to be treated  for

transfer purposes  as a request for each of those documents separate y   n conjunct on w th s 16(1)(b)  th s has the effect that the

request can on y be transferred to the extent that t re ates to each spec f c document of wh ch t can be sa d that the subject matter s

more c ose y connected w th the funct ons of another agency   Sect on 16(3A) makes t c ear that  where the request descr bes a

category or categor es of documents to wh ch access s sought  s 16(1)(b) prov des no author ty for the transfer of the who e of the

request   The spec f c subject matter of each document answer ng the descr pt on n the request must be cons dered   t s un ke y that

th s cou d be done w thout f rst ascerta n ng whether the agency rece v ng the request has documents answer ng the descr pt on  

S m ar y  s 16(4) requ res an agency transferr ng a request to another agency n any of the c rcumstances out ned n s 16 to send “the

document  the subject of the request to the other agency “ f t s necessary to do so n order to enab e the other agency to dea  w th the

request   P a n y  w thout hav ng ascerta ned whether t has such a document  the transferor agency wou d not be n a pos t on to

comp y w th th s requ rement

36                  The broader context of the FO  Act s a so mportant   t s true that there s not to be found n the prov s ons of the FO  Act

any express mpos t on of a duty on the rec p ent of a request for access to documents to search ts records to ascerta n whether t has

documents answer ng the descr pt on n the request   Such a duty s mp c t  however   Sect on 11 prov des a r ght to obta n access to

documents   Prov ded that a request made pursuant to s 15(1) comp es w th the bas c requ rements of s 15(2)  s 15(4) mposes on the

rec p ent of the request a duty to take reasonab e steps to ass st the person mak ng the request to d rect t to the appropr ate agency  f

the request “shou d have been d rected  to another agency or M n ster   t s d ff cu t to see how that ob gat on cou d be carr ed out

un ess the rec p ent of the request f rst estab shed that t had no documents answer ng the descr pt on n the request   Sect on 18

mposes a pos t ve duty on the rec p ent of the request to g ve the person mak ng the request access to the document   On y under

m ted c rcumstances  spec f ed n s 21(1)  can such access be deferred   The c rcumstances n wh ch a request may be refused are

a so very m ted   Sect on 24 dea s w th requests that are so onerous that they wou d substant a y and unreasonab y d vert the

resources of an agency from ts other operat ons  or nterfere w th the performance of a M n ster s funct ons   n those c rcumstances  s

24(1) prov des that the request may be refused “w thout hav ng caused the process ng of the request to have been undertaken  

Sect on 24(2)(a) spec f ca y a ows an agency or M n ster to have regard to the resources that wou d have been used n “ dent fy ng

ocat ng or co at ng the documents w th n the f ng system of the agency  or the off ce of the M n ster  n determ n ng whether to refuse

to grant access to documents under s 24(1)   These prov s ons suggest that  where a request s not so onerous  the rec p ent of t s

ob ged to cause the process ng of t to be undertaken  us ng whatever resources are necessary to dent fy  ocate and co ate the

documents n the f ng system of the agency or the off ce of the M n ster concerned   A refusa  under s 24A s on y poss b e f a

reasonab e steps have been taken to f nd the documents and the rec p ent of the request s sat sf ed e ther that the document cannot be

found or that t does not ex st   A refusa  under s 24A s therefore mposs b e w thout a search   F na y  there s the spec f c requ rement

n s 15(5)(b) that a dec s on be g ven on the request w th n 30 days  un ess the t me s extended under s 15(6)   t s hard to see how a

dec s on can be g ven about whether to grant or refuse access to documents requested (as de from onerous requests of the k nds

referred to n s 24(1))  un ess the rec p ent of the request took steps to f nd out what documents t had and to cons der whether they are

exempt under var ous prov s ons of the FO  Act and  f not  whether de et on of exempt matter or rre evant mater a  under s 22 s

necessary   n th s context  t s un ke y to have been the ntent on of Par ament that the power to transfer a request under s 16(1)(b)

a one among a  of the ob gat ons that fa  on the rec p ent of a request  was ntended to be exerc sab e w thout any step be ng taken to

ascerta n whether the rec p ent of the document has documents answer ng the descr pt on n the request
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